East Tennessee State University

Digital Commons @ East Tennessee State University

Graduate Council Meeting Minutes and Reports

3-28-2016

2016 March 28 - Graduate Council Minutes

College of Graduate and Continuing Studies, East Tennessee State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://dc.etsu.edu/grad-council-minutes

Part of the Higher Education Commons

Recommended Citation

College of Graduate and Continuing Studies, East Tennessee State University, "2016 March 28 - Graduate Council Minutes" (2016). *Graduate Council Meeting Minutes and Reports*. 146. https://dc.etsu.edu/grad-council-minutes/146

This Minutes is brought to you for free and open access by Digital Commons @ East Tennessee State University. It has been accepted for inclusion in Graduate Council Meeting Minutes and Reports by an authorized administrator of Digital Commons @ East Tennessee State University. For more information, please contact digilib@etsu.edu.

Graduate Council – Agenda East Tennessee State University March 28, 2016, 1:15pm President's Conference Room – Burgin Dossett Hall 206

Present: Dr. Karin Bartoszuk, Dr. David Currie, Dr. Marsh Grube, Ms. LaDonna Hutchins, Ms. Billie Lancaster, Dr. Brian Maxson, Dr. Cecilia McIntosh, Dr. Evelyn Roach, Ms. Connie Wyche, Ms. Jennifer Barber, Dr. Patrick Bradshaw, Dr. Stacey D. Brown, Dr. Wendy Doucette, Ms. Wendolin Elrod, Dr. Michelle Lee, Dr. Lori Marks, Lisa Haddad for Dr. Kenneth D. Phillips, Dr. Martha M. Pointer, Dr. Kelly Price, Dr. Nicole Prior, Dr. Janna Scarborough, Dr. Paul Trogen

Absent: Dr. Jill Leroy-Frazier, Dr. Rob Pack, Dr. Maria Costa, Dr. William Duncan, Dr. Mitch Robinson, Dr. Brittany Wilkins

Guests:

A. Approval of February 2016 Minutes

The motion was made, seconded and approved to accept the February 2016 minutes.

B. Curriculum Subcommittee report – Dr. Wendy Doucette

Each of the proposals below was considered using the following characteristics as an element of the appropriateness of the proposal: Appropriate credit hour assignment Appropriate discipline-specific best practices Appropriate purpose and goals of the proposal Appropriate intellectual/learning outcomes Appropriate content and topics Appropriate major assignments Appropriate class level Appropriate course type Appropriate course delivery method Conflict with other courses or programs Articulation and transferability of credit to other institutions

I. Non-Substantive Curriculum Change: Public Health-DrPH Community Health Concentration <u>AND</u> Public Health-DrPH Epidemiology-Public Health Concentration (Dr. Deborah Slawson)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx? DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=17&Instance=8693 http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx? DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=17&Instance=8748

Motion made and carried to accept with the following changes:

- 1. Proposal:
 - a. Page 1, Rationale for Proposal and Page 2, Summary of Actions: correct all references to ENVH 5640 to ENVH 5870.
 - b. Page 4, Proposed Implementation Term: Fall 2017

II. New Course Proposal: MALS 5500, Applied Theater Practicum (Dr. Marie Tedesco)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=6&Instance=8779

_Motion made, seconded, and carried to accept with the following changes:

- 1. Snapshot:
 - a. Page 2, Proposed Implementation Term: Summer 2017
- 2. Syllabus:
 - a. Page 1, Major Course Topics: correct typo in second line
 - b. Page 1, Learning Outcomes:
 - a. bullet 1: correct typo, add article
 - b. bullets 2: restate
 - c. Page 1, Major Assignments
 - a. Paragraph 1: journal of critical reflection
 - b. Paragraph 2: correct typo, add space after "educational," add space between least and two.
 - d. Page 2, Grading Scale: F = "Below 73"
 - e. Page 2, Attendance Policy: correct typo, third line
 - f. Page 2, Other Information: add space, first line

New Course Proposal: REAL 5100-5400 (Dr. Marie Tedesco)

REAL 5100: Foundations in REAL Pedagogy

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=6&Instance=8739

REAL 5200: Kinesthetic Learning and Teaching

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=6&Instance=8744

REAL 5300: Learning Through Emotions

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=6&Instance=8746

REAL 5400: The Art of the Lesson (proposed implementation date Spring 2017)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=6&Instance=8749 Motion made and carried to approve with the following changes:

- 1. Snapshot (overall):
 - a. Catalog Description: begin with the verb
- 2. Proposal (overall):
 - a. Catalog Description: begin with the verb
 - b. Course Goals: edit these down to 4-5 instructor goals
 - c. Learning Outcomes: edit these down to 4-5 enduring skills
 - d. Grading Scale: F = "Below 73"
 - e. Check punctuation and spacing throughout

IV. TBR Proposal: Establish a New Certificate in Applied Theater Pedagogy (Dr. Marie Tedesco)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?

DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=11&Instance=8751

Motion was made, seconded, and carried with the following changes:

1. Snapshot:

a. Page 2, Narrative Description of Action: End first sentence after Pedagogy.

- 2. Proposal:
 - a. Page 1, Cooperative/Collaborative Partners: N/A
 - b. Page 3, Impact: delete line 3
 - c. Page 4
 - i. #3: standardize appendix titles
 - ii. #7: "THEC Financial Projection Form is attached." Paste content from Appendix F here and delete Appendix F.
 - iii. #8: N/A
 - d. Appendix B
 - i. #1: standardize titles
 - ii. #3: delete (these are present in the concentration)
 - iii. Page 7, Articulation agreement: move to Appendix C
 - e. Appendix C: rename Catalog Information
 - f. Appendix E: restate these more substantially
 - g. Appendix F: delete
 - h. Appendix G: becomes new Appendix F
- V. TBR Proposal: Establish a new Concentration in Applied Theater Pedagogy in the Master of Arts in Liberal Studies (Dr. Marie Tedesco)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?

DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=11&Instance=8773

_Motion was made, seconded, and carried with the following changes:

- 1. Snapshot:
 - a. Page 2, Narrative Description of Action: Restate sentence 2
- 2. Proposal:
 - a. Page 1, Cooperative/Collaborative Partners: N/A
 - b. Page 3, Need/Rationale: paragraph 3, "in this concentration."
 - c. Page 4, #7: N/A
 - d. Appendix C
 - i. #3: use same credit format as above
 - ii. Remove #5 and center "course descriptions"
 - 1. MALS 5500: raise credits and prerequisite information after title to match others

1. TBR Proposal: Admission, Retention, Graduation Policy: DNP Practice Admission Requirements (Dr. Lisa Haddad)

http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?

DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=11&Instance=8803

Motion was made, seconded, and carried with the following changes:

- 1. Snapshot: no comments
- Proposal statement, Policy Revision: Admission/Progression/Graduation (Program-Specific-DNP)
- 2. TBR Proposal: Establish a New Certificate in Higher Education Leadership (Dr. James Lampley) http://etsuis.etsu.edu/CPS/forms.aspx?

DispType=OutputForms&NodeID=5_4a_9&FormID=11&Instance=8666

Motion was made, seconded, and carried with the following changes:

- 1. Snapshot: no comments
- 2. Proposal
 - a. Appendix B: Eliminate sentence 2 in the first paragraph.

Note: most edits already done.

B. Graduate Faculty Subcommittee report and recommendations – Dr. Trogen.

Motion was approved, seconded, and carried

Reappointment	-	-	-
<u>Applicant</u>	<u>Department</u>	Present Status	Recommendation
1. Michael Hoff	Graduate School	Temporary	Member

D. Report from Academic Council – Dr. Marks

E. Old Business

I. Recommendation for clarification of language on Graduate Faculty policy No. 212. Dr. Trogen (see below). Motion to approve and send on to Academic Council was made, seconded, and carried.

F. New Business –

I. Selection of Graduate Faculty Mentor Award. Dr. Maxson.

The voting members voted and selected the recipient to receive the reward.

- II. Announcement of Awardees. Drs. Bartoszuk and Maxson
- III. Announcement of Award Ceremony. Dr. Maxson.

Dr. Maxson announced that the Award Ceremony will be held on April 20th @ 3:30 PM in the D.P. Culp Auditorium

G. Other

H. Adjournment

PROPOSED

Policy No. 212

EAST TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES

GUIDELINES FOR GRADUATE FACULTY APPOINTMENT

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT

Appointment to the Graduate Faculty is viewed as a commitment to excellence in graduate education and professional productivity, in accordance with the policies of the School of Graduate Studies. Among the criteria for appointment to the Graduate Faculty are:

- Possession of the terminal degree (as defined by the discipline) from an appropriately accredited institution. If the faculty member does not hold the appropriate terminal degree, or otherwise does not meet accreditation standards for graduate faculty status in that discipline, the highest level of membership for which this faculty member may apply is Affiliate Member.
- An identified programmatic connection with graduate course work and a commitment to participation in the graduate program; this may include activities such as advising responsibilities, directing student research, serving on graduate advisory committees, or teaching graduate-level courses.
- Competency in teaching, as evaluated by the department chair.
- Professional productivity as demonstrated by publications, grants, research, or other scholarly and creative activities.
- Evidence of leadership at the graduate program, department, college, university, or professional level.

Particular attention will be given to the quality and depth of the faculty member's contributions to graduate education and to the quality and depth of his or her scholarship. The graduate program coordinator, department chair, and dean are all asked to provide narrative comments on these qualitative criteria. LEVELS OF MEMBERSHIP

The Graduate Council will recommend, based on an evaluation of the applicant's credentials as documented on the application form, the classification of the appointment.

TEMPORARY MEMBER

A part-time faculty member or a member of the community who has special competencies for conduct of the departmental graduate program may be recommended for temporary membership on the Graduate Faculty.

Depending on qualifications, a temporary member may teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and serve on graduate student advisory committees as a supplemental committee member. A temporary member cannot chair graduate student advisory committees. A temporary member is appointed for a maximum of one year, at the discretion of the Dean of Graduate Studies.

AFFILIATE MEMBER

A tenured, tenure-track, non-tenurable fulltime, or adjunct faculty member who does not meet the criteria for member or senior member status on the Graduate Faculty, but who has special competencies needed in a department's graduate program, may be recommended for affiliate membership on the Graduate Faculty. An affiliate member of the graduate faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and to serve as a member of graduate student advisory committees. An affiliate member is appointed for a three-year term.

MEMBER

A fulltime faculty member with a terminal degree who demonstrates productivity in graduate teaching; scholarly research, publication, or creative activity; directing graduate student research; serving on graduate student advisory committees; grant writing; and/or providing graduate program, department, college, university, or professional leadership, but who lacks extensive contributions or an extended record of accomplishments in these areas, is eligible for member status. A member of the Graduate Faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and can chair or serve on graduate student advisory committees. A member is appointed for a five-year term.

SENIOR MEMBER

A fulltime faculty member with a terminal degree who has demonstrated an ongoing involvement and proficiency in graduate teaching, maintained a record of excellence in research and publication or creative activity; directed graduate student research; served on graduate student advisory committees; and provided graduate program, department, college, university, and/or professional leadership or service is eligible for senior membership. Because graduate student research or creative activity requirements are discipline specific, faculty expectations in this area will vary from discipline to discipline. Experience and productivity in the areas indicated above may have been established at ETSU or elsewhere, but productivity must continue into the most recent review period. A senior member of the Graduate Faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and can chair or serve as a member of graduate student advisory committees. A senior member is appointed for a seven-year term.

APPOINTMENT AND REAPPOINTMENT PROCEDURES

Appointment to the Graduate Faculty is dependent upon the ongoing performance of the activities required for membership. Thus, each member of the Graduate Faculty will be reviewed according to documented evidence of active participation and competence in graduate teaching, direction of student research, service on graduate student advisory committees, advising of graduate students, professional productivity, and/or providing department, college, university, or professional leadership prior to the initial appointment for new applications or since the last Graduate Faculty appointment for re-applicants. The review is conducted by the Graduate Council and, for new applicants, must take place prior to teaching any graduate classes or serving on any graduate student advisory committees; for re-applicants the review must occur prior to the expiration of the current appointment. The review may result in a recommendation for appointment or reappointment at the senior member, the member, or the affiliate member level, or in the recommendation for removal from the Graduate Faculty ILAIL

A faculty member in post-retirement, or who holds retired or emeritus status, shall retain the level of graduate faculty appointment in effect at the time of retirement. When the term of appointment expires, these faculty members are eligible to reapply for appointment to the graduate faculty following the same procedures and guidelines as for all faculty.

A. APPOINTMENT AT SENIOR, MEMBER, OR AFFILIATE LEVEL

- 1. The faculty member must complete an application form and forward this document to the appropriate graduate coordinator. Applicants for initial appointment must also submit current curriculum vitae to supplement the application form. The graduate coordinator will comment on the quality and depth of the faculty member's contribution or potential contribution to graduate education and scholarship, and will secure a similar narrative recommendation from the departmental chair, who in turn will secure a similar narrative recommendation from the appropriate college dean. Each reviewer will also recommend an appropriate appointment level, based on her/his review of the faculty member's credentials. The college dean will forward the application to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies.
- 2. Applications for Graduate Faculty membership may be submitted to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies at any time. Applications will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Graduate Council, which makes a recommendation for or against appointment/reappointment. This recommendation is forwarded to the President of the University, who makes the final decision concerning Graduate Faculty appointment.
- 3. The Dean of the School of Graduate Studies will inform Graduate Faculty members and the appropriate chairs and deans of the date the faculty member's appointment is to expire and of the web site URL where current policies, procedures, and appointment application forms can be obtained.
- 4. Under exceptional circumstances, the faculty member, department chair, dean, or graduate dean may petition the Graduate Council to undertake a review of a member of the Graduate Faculty prior to the expiration of the appointment.

B. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS

Prior to the beginning of any term, and allowing sufficient time for proper review of the application, an applicant for temporary appointment must submit a curriculum vita to the department chair. The chair will complete a Request for Appointment to Temporary Graduate Faculty Status form. The request must specify the course(s) to be taught and the appropriateness of the faculty member's credentials to teach the requested course(s). The curriculum vita and the chair's completed request form are then forwarded to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies, who approves or denies the request.

EXCEPTIONS AND DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM PREROGATIVES

Requests for exceptions to the policies and procedures stated herein must be submitted to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies for approval. This includes departments or programs wishing to use a more rigorous classification standard for faculty serving as dissertation committee chairs.

CURRENT

Policy No. 212

EAST TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES

GUIDELINES FOR GRADUATE FACULTY APPOINTMENT

I. CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT

Appointment to the Graduate Faculty is viewed as a commitment to excellence in graduate education and professional productivity, in accordance with the policies of the School of Graduate Studies. Among the criteria for appointment to the Graduate Faculty are:

- Possession of the terminal degree (as defined by the discipline) from an appropriately accredited institution. If the faculty member does not hold the appropriate terminal degree, or otherwise does not meet accreditation standards for graduate faculty status in that discipline, the highest level of membership for which this faculty member may apply is Affiliate Member.
- An identified programmatic connection with graduate course work and a commitment to participation in the graduate program, including advising responsibilities and directing student research.
- o Competency in teaching, as evaluated by the department chair.
- o Professional productivity as demonstrated by publications, grants, research, or other scholarly and creative

activities.

o Evidence of leadership at the department, college, university, or professional level.

Particular attention will be given to the quality and depth of the faculty member's contributions to graduate education and to the quality and depth of his or her scholarship. **The graduate program coordinator, department chair, and dean are all asked to provide narrative comments on these qualitative criteria.**

II. LEVELS OF MEMBERSHIP

The Graduate Council will recommend, based on an evaluation of the applicant's credentials as documented on the application form, the classification of the appointment.

o TEMPORARY MEMBER

A part-time faculty member or a member of the community who has special competencies for conduct of the departmental graduate program may be recommended for temporary membership on the Graduate Faculty. Depending on qualifications, a temporary member may teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and serve on graduate student advisory committees as a supplemental committee member. A temporary member cannot chair graduate student advisory committees. A temporary member is appointed for a maximum of one year, at the discretion of the Dean of Graduate Studies.

o AFFILIATE MEMBER

A regular, adjunct, or temporary full-time faculty member who does not meet the criteria for member or senior member status on the Graduate Faculty, but who has special competencies needed in a department's graduate program, may be recommended for affiliate membership on the Graduate Faculty. An affiliate member of the graduate faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and to serve as a member of graduate student advisory committees. An affiliate member cannot chair graduate student advisory committees. An affiliate member cannot chair graduate student advisory committees. An affiliate member student advisory committees.

o MEMBER

A faculty member with a terminal degree who demonstrates productivity in graduate teaching; scholarly research, publication, or creative activity; directing graduate student research; serving on graduate student advisory committees; grant writing; and/or providing department, college, university, or professional leadership, but who lacks extensive contributions or an extended record of accomplishments in these areas, is eligible for member status. A member of the Graduate Faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and can chair or serve on graduate student advisory committees. A member is appointed for a five-year term.

o SENIOR MEMBER

A faculty member with a terminal degree who has demonstrated an ongoing involvement and proficiency in graduate teaching, maintained a record of excellence in research and publication or creative activity; directed graduate student research; served on graduate student advisory committees; and provided department, college, university, and/or professional leadership or service is eligible for senior membership. Because graduate student research or creative activity requirements are discipline specific, faculty expectations in this area will vary from discipline to discipline. Experience and productivity in the areas indicated above may have been established at ETSU or elsewhere, but must have been conducted over the most recent review period. A senior member of the Graduate Faculty is eligible to teach graduate courses, including 4XX7/5XX7 and 4956/5956 courses, and can chair or serve as a member of graduate student advisory committees. A senior member is appointed for a seven-year term.

Appointment to the Graduate Faculty is dependent upon the ongoing performance of the activities required for membership. Thus, each member of the Graduate Faculty will be reviewed according to documented evidence of active participation and competence in graduate teaching, direction of student research, service on graduate student advisory committees, advising of graduate students, professional productivity, and/or providing department, college, university, or professional leadership prior to the initial appointment for new applications or since the last Graduate Faculty appointment for re-applicants. The review is conducted by the Graduate Council and, for new applicants, must take place prior to teaching any graduate classes or serving on any graduate student advisory committees; for re-applicants the review occurs just prior to the expiration of the current appointment. The review may result in a recommendation for appointment or reappointment at the senior member, the member, or the affiliate member level, or in the recommendation for removal from the Graduate Faculty.

A faculty member in post-retirement, or who holds retired or emeritus status, shall retain the level of graduate faculty appointment in effect at the time of retirement. When the term of appointment expires, these faculty members are eligible to reapply for appointment to the graduate faculty following the same procedures and guidelines as for all faculty.

A. APPOINTMENT AT SENIOR, MEMBER, OR AFFILIATE LEVEL

- 1. The faculty member must complete an application form and forward this document to the appropriate graduate coordinator. Applicants for initial appointment must also submit current curriculum vitae to supplement the application form. The graduate coordinator will comment on the quality and depth of the faculty member's contribution or potential contribution to graduate education and scholarship, and will secure a similar narrative recommendation from the departmental chair, who in turn will secure a similar narrative recommendation from the appropriate college dean. Each reviewer will also recommend an appropriate appointment level, based on her/his review of the faculty member's credentials. The college dean will forward the application to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies.
- 2. Applications for Graduate Faculty membership may be submitted to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies at any time. Applications will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Graduate Council, which makes a recommendation for or against appointment/reappointment. This recommendation is forwarded to the President of the University, who makes the final decision concerning Graduate Faculty appointment.
- 3. The Dean of the School of Graduate Studies will inform Graduate Faculty members and the appropriate chairs and deans of the date the faculty member's appointment is to expire and of the web site URL where current policies, procedures, and appointment application forms can be obtained.
- 4. Under exceptional circumstances, the faculty member, department chair, dean, or graduate dean may petition the Graduate Council to undertake a review of a member of the Graduate Faculty prior to the expiration of the appointment.

B. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS

Prior to the beginning of any term, and allowing sufficient time for proper review of the application, an applicant for temporary appointment must submit a curriculum vita to the department chair. The chair will complete a Request for Appointment to Temporary Graduate Faculty Status form. The request must specify the course(s) to be taught and the appropriateness of the faculty member's credentials to teach the requested course(s). The curriculum vita and the chair's completed request form are then forwarded to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies, who approves or denies the request.

IV. EXCEPTIONS AND DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM PREROGATIVES

Requests for exceptions to the policies and procedures stated herein must be submitted to the Dean of the School of Graduate Studies for approval. This includes departments or programs wishing to use a more rigorous classification standard for faculty serving as dissertation committee chairs.

[[]LJA1] Is this an option within the current online system?